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Introduction 

Cambodia is on its recovery measures in lifting the financial growth of the country by 

implementing its economic plans and launching the steps this year forwards. It entails, 

economic recovery, reforms and building resilience addressing concerns post-pandemic which 

aims a growth back to its potential rate, strengthened sustainable and socio-development in 

the long run. With this future visions and missions sets for covid situation, it is expected that 

the country’s growth will continue to increase in years to come. Banking industry as one of 

the foundations that supports the government on its recovery plan had prepared in Cambodia’s 

reopening in the new normal phase.  

ANCO SPECIALIZED BANK is one of the long-standing domestic financial 

institutions which share its part on this sector exerts to deliver its business services in high 

commitment and maintains its operation always with integrity. The bank is focused on its core 

business activity of providing loans and operating in a confident manner of extending a 

quality, sound and safe financial service. The bank continues to upholds its commitment and 

improves its ways aligned to its goals and vision for helping and protecting the Cambodian 

community. This year highlights the banks proposition and approach on the safety growth and 

challenges on the economy, designed methods for improved process and services towards a 

better financial operation, widened target markets and expansion in business areas. To the 

extent, the bank’s strengthened actions and collaborations in managing the business risks 

associated in the emerging Cambodia economy. 

This year, the bank offers the public a well-informed declaration thru this publishes in 

cooperation and support from the National Bank of Cambodia to raised understanding and 

awareness in banking industry and of equally mutual benefit. Moreover, with this report as 

instrument, Anco Specialized Bank hopes and expect to build a harmonious relationship with 

our customers, strengthened with trusts and confidence, that we will serve a quality financial 

service not only for today and the futures to come! 
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I- ADMINISTRATIVE COUNCIL’S REPORT 

 Overall Business Environment 

Anco Specialized Bank was incorporated in Cambodia on 11
th

 January 2006 and

commenced operation on July of 2006 with the own equity of the bank’s governing council 

and Oknha Kok An as the head.  

 Bank business information: 

 Location:  Ground floor, Pi Pay Tower, No.20, Sangkat Veal Vong, 

       Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia. 

 Telephone No: (+855) 070-330-011 

 E-mail  address: asb@ancogroups.com 

a. Bank Mission

The bank’s mission is to create sustainable access to financial services for rural 

people, small and medium enterprises and all Cambodian individual. 

b. Bank Vision

The bank’s vision is to become a financially viable and licensed specialized bank that 

contributes to sustainable economic development, particularly in rural areas to improve and 

promote the living standards of the Cambodian people. 

c. Principal Activity of the Bank

Anco Specialized Bank is a bank which provides exclusively loan service which includes: 

 Fixed Loan

 Short term loan

 Long term loan

 Consumer Loan

 Staff Loan
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II- BANK CHART 

The head of each section should be responsible for all relevant obligations and duties, 

and is immediately submitted report to his or her supervisor, if necessary. 

Anco Specialized Bank currently holds operation in the following locations: 

ASB - Head Office ASB - Branches 

 Phnom Penh

 Russey Keo

 Kampong Chhnang

 Battambang

 Poipet
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 Sihanoukville
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III- SHAREHOLDING INFORMATION 

Capital and Major Shareholders 

- Paid up capital USD30,000,000.00 

- Shareholders: 

1. Oknha Kok An    70% shares 

2. Mrs. Sok Im 30% shares 

IV- POLICY AND PRACTICE GUIDELINES FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

a. Board Composition

There are 5 members consisting the top management of Anco Specialized Bank. 

Board of Directors 

-  Oknha Kok An Chairman of the board 

-  Mrs. Sok Im Vice Chairman of the board 

-  Mrs. Klongkitjakon PhuCherlin Member of the board 

-  Mr. Lang Hao Member of the board 

Executive Management 

-  Mrs. Siv Heang General Manager 

b. Board Meeting

The governance council is bound to have four meetings each year for operations: 

- Discuss and approve loan requests and documents, activity and operations.  

- Discuss major monthly developments in banking performance and industry. 

- Discuss proposed procedures and formats to be improved in operation. 

- Discuss major decision to be made for significant banking operations. 

- Discuss the policies and new rules/prakas set out for financial institutions. 

- Planning for the bank growth. 

c. Bank Committee

 Credit and Risk Committee

 Audit Committee
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V- BUSINESS DESCRIPTION 

a. Board Focus and Commitment

 Anco Specialized Bank aims to increase its revenue and market shares in the long 

run through providing its core business activity of various loan services to small and medium 

size businesses for the betterment of its future operation and to improve its public financial 

awareness for the Cambodian people. The governing council plans to diversify its business 

with its transformation into a commercial bank in the future as its long-term goal thus 

expanding its operations in all areas of Cambodia. Anco Specialized Bank is committed itself 

to abide by all the relevant laws, standards and the declarations of the National Bank of 

Cambodia so that its service could reach the international standard for future progress. 

b. Steps taken to strengthen the bank position and performance

 The financial sector plays an important role in supporting the economy of the country 

by supplying vital assistance especially credit to the corporate sector and households. Anco 

bank as one of the institutions in Cambodia is faced with some challenges as far as banking 

economy is concerned in terms of public safety and financial stability. The bank strictly 

abides with all regulations sets and declared of the National Bank of Cambodia and following 

the rules guided by the Ministry of Health in order to strengthen the safety of banking 

operations. The bank believes that all the enforced laws and standards are the beacon to map 

out short comings confronted by the bank processes. Anco Specialized Bank, although facing 

an unavoidable challenge remains positive to promote an improvement on its services. 

Strengthening its focus on customer management and safety is the key goal of the bank. They 

trust that when customers are satisfied the bank will hold their loyalty and that will keep the 

bank in a solid position in the economy. It also aims to optimize its efficiency on the 

advancement of technology and laying out plans to improve their process through systems. To 

retain the profitable growth, the bank improves its services by strengthening consistency and 

efficiency on loan services, defining and tightening the strategies for product portfolios. Anco 

Bank realizes that to achieve a sound and meaningful profitability, adapting and responding to 

change and innovation is the key while keeping track of the established standards of the 

regulators. 
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VI- FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

a. Graphical Financial Trends
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b. Key Performance Indicators

 Statement of Profitability

    In USD 

Total Revenue   $ 3,568,831.00

Total Expenses  $ 1,720,729.00 

Profit / Loss   $ 1,848,103.00 

 Balance Sheet

Total Assets $ 42,008,862.00

Total Liabilities      $ 378,825.00 

Total Equity   $ 41,630,037.00 

 Financial ratios

Equity to Total Assets   99.10% 

Liabilities to Total Assets 0.90% 

Solvency Ratio   127.98% 

Liquidity Ratio        36.18% 

Quick Ratio     8,630.95% 

VII- BUSINESS OPERATION TARGET 

Anco Specialized Bank is optimistic that by pursuing a betterment on different 

business operation areas will result to be one of progressive financial institution with the 

changing Cambodia economy. Creating a balance and correlation between the following 

perspectives will help to achieve the targets and set the goals of the bank’s future.  

` 
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a. Financial Perspective

Anco bank financial outlook focuses on generating profits and new product 

development with better loan details ensuring customer satisfaction. To increase revenue in 

targeted markets by means of developing loan portfolios with new markets in areas at the 

same time alleviating the bad debts and operation costs incurred without degrading the level 

of its services. The bank attempts to establish a sound credit rating and policies, as well as 

increased its market value in the banking sector and promotes satisfaction to its client. The 

bank goals can be achieved by satisfying the needs of the players involved in the business 

such as shareholders and customers. 

b. Customer Perspective

In the new normal phase caused by pandemic, the bank still aims to develop and 

promotes new product to cater the needs of customer as well based in the economy’s need 

ensuring safety banking services while extending its target market. To improved customer 

experience is to develop a more convenient service for the clients and deliver an effective 

method by upgrading the credit policies. The past years paved a way to adheres to a safer 

banking physically and virtually. Anco bank together with the regulators ensure that 

customers are at top priority alongside with the personnel in the new normal era fighting 

against the pandemic effect. The bank strives to develop an array of product portfolio that 

would cater the needs of each customer segment. Thru personal and frequent interaction with 

customers via online and safe face to face meeting, the bank will gain an insight of which 

areas to improve and develop. Such advertisements and promotions will be upgraded for the 

purpose of strengthening the offers and in line with the health crisis, Anco Specialized Bank 

made adjustments on its product services costs and rates to extend help in public in order to 

increase the market shares from the loan industry sector of the country. 

c. Internal Process Perspective

The bank firmly believes that a strong internal process is a key to a successful 

business. Awareness and modification on the internal processes, updates and improvements is 

to be done in order to be one of the successful financial institutions. The bank is required to 

have a series of audits for both internal and external body at frequent periods every year in 

order to obtain a sound quality checks and balances and to have a transparent and confident 

operations and services. Compliance in policies implemented by the National Bank of 

Cambodia have been maintained and established to promote a healthy financial service. This 

includes a better and  

fair product and service offerings. An updated banking system, has used to improved its 

operation and to have an accurate financial data to see the business standing. Anco bank 

complies with both accounting standard CAS and CIFRS for a better view of its financials 
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reports. Changes have been implemented following the government strict adherence for safety 

protocols combatting pandemic. This safety measures had been strictly practiced by the bank 

and have been added to its internal policy to be implemented in support with the country’s 

address to beat the global health crisis. 

d. Human Resource Development

The bank human resource is one of the keys to develop a sound team that will ensure 

the progress of the company’s goal. Optimizing human capital by strengthening employee 

expertise and increase knowledge by involving them in various trainings and workshops that 

will help to build and boosts their skills to achieve a confident, well-focused employee. 

Providing a balanced learning and banking techniques with the help and support of the 

National Bank of Cambodia and Association of Banks in Cambodia to encourage the staffs to 

perform well in banking industry. Not only the bank focuses on their skills but also on 

maintaining that employees are healthy by ensuring that they are all vaccinated in accordance 

with the guidelines of Ministry. Incorporating a good leadership to promotes the bank’s 

initiative to have a competitive team that will upholds the company’s vision and mission 

towards its customers and share on Cambodia’s community. The HR teams make sure that the 

institution is updated on the government’s response on pandemic information, the bank makes 

sure that the staffs are protected thru vaccination and implemented the safety measures 

regularly. 

e. Significant Operation Plan for the following year

 Anco Specialized Bank upholds to be one of the strong and long-standing financial 

institution for the benefit of the Cambodian people, to do so, it is significant to have an in-

depth planning taken to promote its services. The spread of Covid-19 outbreak has severely 

impacted businesses in Cambodia, although the directors have assessed and concluded that the 

impact on the financial institution is minimal the bank had taken steps to modify its policies 

and services offered to conveniently assure its target market ensuring safety at this phase. The 

effects of pandemic are undeniable either operationally and financially, however, the 

following years strategic plan of the bank focuses on building more target markets and to 

continue as a going concern business. The bank shareholder’s increases its working capital in 

order to strengthened the cashflow of extending help the livelihood of people mostly affected 

by the pandemic by giving out more loans thus increasing its market share. With modified 

terms for customers convenient and compliance with NBC’s rule to keep afloat. The bank will 

give more emphasis on the increasing number of non-performing loans additionally as a result 

of the health crisis. Such loan restructuring will be established conveniently for customers per 
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approval from NBC guidelines. Safety will be strictly implemented and promoted by ensuring 

staffs and customers welfare supporting the governments battle on the health crisis. 

Sustainability of business will be highly look forward to address the issues faced during the 

pandemic period. The possibility that this global health crisis will pose more long-term effects 

having a significant impact in the economy, the bank will do its best to plan ahead to prepare 

the institution on this concern and hopes that pandemic will end anytime soon.  

VIII- FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES 

Anco Specialized Bank had been an established institution with a banking operation of 

over a decade. Being one of the long-standing financial institutions who’s operating locally in 

Cambodia and solely providing loan services as its main activity, the bank is aware of the 

risks that are unavoidable hence it should be manageable. The bank’s financial risks are due to 

market movements and several factors such as the impact of health crisis being the highlight 

of the year. The strengthened financial performance, though shows low performance during 

the year encountered a number of risks in association to global safety against pandemic 

outbreak. The bank enhanced its management on risks in order to keep track of the aspects 

that greatly affects the bank’s operation, and develops several strategies to provide solutions 

in strengthening the policies set to control the threats.     

a. Credit Risk

Anco bank sole business activity is providing loan which always comes with an 

inherent credit risk and would result when a customer comes to default payment. Due to the 

pandemic outbreak the bank was impacted on the increased number of non-performing loans 

however was able to identify and managed the risks associated with loans although this comes 

with difficulty as per the results of its operation each year. The bank deliberately addresses the 

issues and the decrease number in NPL by engaging in more interactive processes to help ease 

the difficulty of customers to pay. The bank manages its operation focusing on its customer 

loans mostly affected by the health crisis and also gives emphasis on the non-performing 

loans to set up a clear action by on call and online follow ups within bank means of 

communication and personal representative presence applying safety measures. The bank 

adheres strict safety measures on its loan processing to manage the risks associated in the 

future, however for those loans affected by pandemic a multiple restructure had been allowed 

if needed. Loan disbursements are scrutinized instead were temporarily suspended per 

decision of the banks top management to focus on the current loan portfolio. However, for 

those bad loans who fall on the worst-case scenario, the bank has decided to take the matter 

legally. The bank sets a tighter and strict policy focusing on safety on its credit policies before 
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approving the loans. A thorough investigation and examination on properties and customer’s 

documents and backgrounds before taking the decision to end although this year it had to be 

done most not physically or if so with proper care and social distancing. In the same manner, 

prior to the decision of granting the loan to its customer, loan agents’ and real estate valuation 

and credit officers have made a perfect assessment for the value of engaged assets in 

consideration of relevant appropriate value on the market. The bank team maintained a high 

standard on studying the customers thoroughly; the requested documents such as cash flow 

reflects the possibility of the customers to repay the bank. A proper and complete document 

were required.  After this in-depth analysis by the loan agent’s valuation, credit officers 

together with credit manager, the approval of loan still requires an additional study by the 

bank and a favorable decision by the bank’s credit committee, which are part of the bank’s 

governance policy toward the credit loss. A higher of approval were given with the help of the 

bank’s committees. Though with these stricter compliance and requirements, services might 

take some time, but the bank foresee this practice as a way to cope up with the downfall of 

performance and the solution to control the level of credit risks at an acceptable level, while 

the bank assures its customers that it will continue to find more alternatives and more defined 

practices to improve its services that will be a mutual benefit on a positive credit process. The 

bank continued to take a full effort to decrease its non-performing loans and decreased the 

associated credit risks with the information and knowledge extended from adopting of the 

appropriate and full standards and procedures to manage the significant increase in credit risk 

before the bank lose its total control for all of its loan portfolios. 

b. Operational Risk

Anco bank continues to control and managed the operational risks associated in its 

operation, particularly on the non-performance loans that raised during the health crisis 

outbreak. 

With the serious challenge faced brought by the global pandemic a modification on banking 

policy and its implementation plays an important role in ensuring safety to improve its 

internal processes as well as the procedures and practices on its daily banking operations. 

Processes were being strictly monitored and adopted to international practices in accordance 

with the National Bank and Health Ministry to meet the needs of the market and comply with 

new set banking rules for the country’s recovering economy. Given the limitation on physical 

interaction as safety is utmost priority, the bank encounters various difficulty especially 

dealing with customers with the threat of covid-19. The past year’s status of non-performance 

loans is disappointing which resulted to loss in revenue which clearly shows a negative 
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turnover. With its strict team and strategy implementation with adoption of safety measures 

imposed by the government, the bank dealt with struggle in communication and loss were 

suffered from the past but the team put its effort to imply a favorable effect. However, the 

pandemic season is unpredictable and suffering with increased covid cases resulted to 

lockdown and some temporary shutdown of operations which granted a lower and limited 

manpower that slows down the operation causes delay in processing. These factors 

contributed the high operational risks of the bank during the year and expected to continue for 

the next years if not controlled. In terms of business process, to prevent a downfall in the slow 

systems risks, the bank continues to operates with a banking system to gain more customer 

trust by giving them an efficient transaction. The bank continues to comply with both standard 

of financial reporting as per the guidelines and support of the NBC. The focus to a more 

viable policy, strong manpower and efficient system were given importance to manage the 

operational risks which poses a threat on the financial stability of the bank. The Cambodia’s 

economy is somehow challenge by the emerging health and safety issues but somehow with 

the government’s fast action, the country is on its road to recovery soon unto to the coming 

years. While the bank remains optimistic that although there would arise a difficulty sooner 

which could impact its operation, the bank will find a way to adjust and continue its business. 

The bank is taking its banking actions more seriously to turn the situation back into smooth 

manner of operation. 

c. Business and Market Risk

The environment where the business runs is an important factor in terms of the 

company’s success. The bank operates now in an emerging economy where there is a lot of 

competition happening and each aspect is affected of what is happening within the country.   

These accompanying business and market risks poses a threat towards the business who’s in a 

going concern concept. Anco bank was able to identify these risks especially the pandemic 

arises and the increase number of competition on the same line of business, preferences of 

customers towards financial services, the changes in the governing body policies, new 

regulations imposed, etc. which could lead to an uncertainty of future profits, more possibility 

of loss and unforeseen events in the future which could result to the bank’s failure and lastly, 

the society’s health and safety concern as a whole. While competition calls for better loan 

packages and services offers, the bank tries its best to manage the risks associated by dealing 

on the same phase with high service integrity. The bank strictly ensures on the safety 

measures imposed by the government to control the spread of health crisis in the country. The 
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fact that the main activity of the bank is providing loan, business risk arises for the limitation 

in physical interaction and communication, identifying the risks on the interest rates is also of 

its concern because it poses a change in value of the financial instrument in the future thus 

both affecting the banks operation and cashflows. The increased number of competitions of 

financial institution offering the same loan service and various loan products were so far the 

big challenge that the bank is experiencing. This poses risks on revenue and stability of the 

bank in the future. Though this risk were both internally and externally, the bank strives to 

keep its ground on assessing all the banking operations, by analyzing the situations, focusing 

on each issue and updates in line with the accompanying changes implemented by the 

government and authority who ruled the banking industry. The international practice on 

reporting thus poses a risk into the business, it is because the bank incurs more costs in order 

to comply and update its current operation and processes to the standard. This requires the 

bank to invest in various trainings to address the current operation while on the progress of 

changing its policies and business practice.  As there is a change in standards, the governing 

body align its concepts and areas too which added to the banks operation pressure on meeting 

the deadline set by the authorities. The encouraged use of local currency to strengthen Khmer 

riels. Currency differences plays a role that might cause a risk such as the inflation rates in 

which the country as of the present were strengthening the Cambodian riel.  This 

implementation poses a risk on exchange fluctuation which still challenges the banks’ ability 

to take customer in KHR because in the urban areas the foreign currency is more acceptable 

by the consumers. The bank finds it a bit difficult in complying but somehow managed to 

assure customers that this new venture will be good to strengthen the country’s currency and 

economy. 

 In the last note, operating in the new normal phase and dealing with the health crisis that the 

world is experiencing, knowing that the impacts severely affect the economy for long term, 

the bank remains in the optimistic phase of business.   Though challenges and changes are met 

along the way, guided by the Royal government of Cambodia and the National Bank had 

helped the bank to manage these risks in the banking industry. Anco Specialized Bank is 

confident on its stand to take charge on the identified risks, focusing on the solution, 

developing better practices and processes, to regulate the unavoidable effects and handle 

without putting the bank’s future in jeopardy. 
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The member Board of Director are responsible to ensure that the financial statement 

for each financial year is properly drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 

affairs of the Bank and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year ended. In 

preparing those financial statements, the members Board of Directors is required to: 

a. Adopt appropriate accounting policies which are supported by reasonable and

prudent judgments and estimates and then apply them consistently;

b. Comply with the requirements of the Cambodian International Financial Reporting

Standards (CIFRSs), or if there have been any departures in the interests of true

and fair presentation, these have been appropriately disclosed, explained and

quantified in the financial statements;

c. Oversee the Bank’s financial reporting process and maintain adequate accounting

records and an effective system of internal controls;

d. Assess the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern and prepare the financial

statements on the going concerns basis unless it is inappropriate to assume that the

Bank will continue operations in the foreseeable future; and

e. Effectively control and direct the Bank in all material decisions affecting the

operations and performance and ascertain that such have been properly reflected in

the financial statements.

The Board of Directors confirms that the Bank has complied with the above 

requirement in preparing the financial statements. 

X- REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 

 Morison Kak MKA

IX- DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Directors (“the Board of Directors”) are pleased to submit their report together with the audited 

financial statements of Anco Specialized Bank Ltd. (“the Bank”) as at and for the year ended 31 

December 2021. 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES 

The principal activities of the Bank comprise the operations of core banking business and the 

provision of related financial services in Cambodia. There were no changes in the nature of the 

principal activities during the year. 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND DIVIDENDS 

The financial performance for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the statement of 

comprehensive income on page 8. 

There were no dividends declared or paid during the financial year. 

STATUTORY CAPITAL 

During the year under review, the Bank’s paid-up capital was increased to USD 30,000,000 at par 

value of USD 100 per share (31 December 2020: USD 20,000,000). 

BAD AND DOUBTFUL LOANS 

Before the financial statements of the Bank were drawn up, the Directors took reasonable steps to 

ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad loans and making of provisions 

for doubtful loans, and satisfied themselves that all known bad loans had been written off and that 

adequate provisions had been made for bad and doubtful loans. 

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render 

the amount written off for bad loans or the amount of the provisions for bad and doubtful loans in 

the financial statements of the Bank inadequate to any material extent. 

ASSETS 

Before the financial statements of the Bank were drawn up, the Directors took reasonable steps to 

ensure that any assets, which were unlikely to be realized in the ordinary course of business at 

their value as shown in the accounting records of the Bank, have been written down to an amount 

which they might be expected to realize.  

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render 

the values attributed to the assets in the financial statements of the Bank misleading in any material 

respect. 

VALUATION METHODS 

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances that have arisen which 

would render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets and liabilities in the financial 

statements of the Bank misleading or inappropriate in any material respect. 
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CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

At the date of this report, there does not exist: 

(a) Any charge on the assets of the Bank that has arisen since the end of the financial year which 

secures the liabilities of any other person, or 

(b) Any contingent liability in respect of the Bank that has arisen since the end of the financial year 

other than in the ordinary course of banking business and as disclosed in the financial statements. 

No contingent or other liability of the Bank has become enforceable, or is likely to become 

enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the 

opinion of the Directors, will or may have a material effect on the ability of the Bank to meet its 

obligations as and when they fall due. 

CHANGES OF CIRCUMSTANCES 

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances, not otherwise dealt 

with in this report or the financial statements of the Bank, which would render any amount stated 

in the financial statements misleading in any material respect. 

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE 

The financial performance of the Bank for the financial year were not, in the opinion of the Directors, 

materially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature. 

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report 

any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the 

Directors, to affect substantially the financial performance of the Bank for the current financial 

year in which this report is made. 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT 

The members of the Board of Directors holding office during the year and as at the date of this report are: 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Okhna Kok An Chair person 

Mrs. Sok Im Vice-Chair person 

Mrs. Klongkitjakon Phucherlin Member 

Mr. Lang Hao Member 

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT 

Mrs. Siv Heang General Manager 

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS 

The interests of the Directors in the shareholding of the Bank during the year and at the date of 

this report are as follows: 

Shareholders Holding        Number of shares of 

% USD100 each 

Okhna Kok An 70 210,000 

Mrs. Sok Im 30 90,000 

100 300,000 
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 Contributed capital  Regulatory reserve  Retained  earnings  

Currency 

translation 

difference  Total 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
                  

Balance as at 1 January 2020 15,000,000  61,125,000  2,989,756  12,183,257  5,521,779  22,501,248  -  23,511,535  95,809,505 

Capital increase 5,000,000  20,400,000  -  -  -  -  -  5,000,000  20,400,000 

Net profit for the year -  -  -  -  1,265,991  5,165,241  -  1,265,991  5,165,241 

Reverse from reserve -  -  1,964,003  8,013,131  (1,964,003)  (8,013,131)  -  -  - 

Currency translation difference -  (625,000)  -  (158,434)  -  -  (141,220)  -  (924,654) 
                  

Balance as at 31 December 2020 20,000,000  80,900,000  4,953,759  20,037,954  4,823,767  19,653,358  (141,220)  29,777,526  120,450,092 

                  

Balance as at 1 January 2021 20,000,000  80,900,000  4,953,759  20,037,954  4,823,767  19,653,358  (141,220)  29,777,526  120,450,092 

Last year’s adjustment on past  

    seniority payment -  -  -  -  4,407  17,929  -  4,407  17,929 

Capital increase 10,000,000  40,680,000  -  -  -  -  -  10,000,000  40,680,000 

Net profit for the year -  -  -  -  1,848,103  7,518,083  -  1,848,103  7,518,083 

Reverse from reserve -  -  2,825,981  11,496,089  (2,825,981)  (11,496,089)  -  -  - 

Currency translation difference -  640,000  -  160,616  -  -  134,051  -  934,667 
                  

Balance as at 31 December 2021 30,000,000  122,220,000  7,779,740  31,694,659  3,850,297  15,693,281  (7,169)  41,630,037  169,600,771 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes from pages 11 to 53 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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  31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 Note USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 

Cash flows from operating activities         
         

Profit before income tax  1,878,950  7,643,569  1,287,757  5,254,049 
         

Adjustments for:         
         

Depreciation and amortization 20 34,948  142,168  71,227  290,606 

Net impairment loss on financial assets 22 475,885  1,935,900  465,878  1,900,782 

Interest expenses  1,429  5,813  5,511  22,485 

Last year's adjustment on past seniority payment  4,407  17,928  -  - 

Lease liability derecognized during the year  -  -  (3,407)  (13,901) 
         

  2,395,619  9,745,377  1,826,966  7,454,021 

Changes in working capital:         

Loans to customers  (4,304,317)  (17,509,960)  (2,799,105)  (11,420,350) 

Statutory deposits with central bank  (500,000)  (2,034,000)  (250,000)  (1,020,000) 

Other assets  786  3,197  (29,067)  (118,593) 

Other liabilities  99,191  403,509  18,026  73,546 
         

Interest paid  (1,429)  (5,813)  (5,511)  (22,485) 

Income tax paid 23 (22,541)  (91,697)  (392,359)  (1,600,825) 
         

Net cash used in operating activities (2,332,691)  (9,489,387)  (1,631,050)  (6,654,686) 
         

Cash flows from investing activities          

Acquisition of property and equipment 9 (2,341)  (9,521)  (10,348)  (42,219) 
         

Net cash used in investing activities  (2,341)  (9,521)  (10,348)  (42,219) 
         

Cash flows from financing activities         

Payment of lease liabilities 12 (28,571)  (116,225)  (56,282)  (229,631) 

Repayment of interest to shareholder  -  -  -  - 

Proceeds from share allotment  10,000,000  40,680,000  5,000,000  20,400,000 
         

Net cash from financing activities 9,971,429  40,563,775  4,943,718  20,170,369 
         

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  7,636,397  31,064,867  3,302,320  13,473,464 
         

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,561,406  30,585,888  4,259,086  17,355,775 

Currency translation  -  265,094  -  (243,351) 
         

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  15,197,803  61,915,849  7,561,406  30,585,888 
         

Represented by:         

Cash in hand 4 1,819,462  7,412,488  1,401,038  5,667,199 

Deposits and placement with banks 5, 6 13,378,341  54,503,361  6,160,368  24,918,689 
         

  15,197,803  61,915,849  7,561,406  30,585,888 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes from pages 11 to 53 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Anco Specialized Bank Ltd. (“the Bank”) was incorporated in Cambodia on 11 January 2006 

under the registration number Co.8323/06P from the Ministry of Commerce. The Bank obtained 

a license from the National Bank of Cambodia to operate as a specialized bank with effect from 

07 June 2002 and officially commenced its operations on 01 July 2006. 

 

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of comprehensive banking and related 

financial services in Cambodia. 

 

The registered office of the Bank is currently located at No.20, street 217, Sangkat Veal Vong, 

Khan 7 Makara, Phnom Penh, Kingdom of Cambodia. 

 

As at 31 December 2021, the Bank has 94 employees (2020: 117 employees) 

 

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2022. 

The Board of Directors has the power to amend and reissue the financial statements. 

 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set 

out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all of the years presented, unless 

otherwise stated. 

 

2.1 Basis of preparation 
 

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Cambodian 

International Financial Reporting Standards (CIFRSs) which are based on full International 

Financial Reporting Standards.  

 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial 

instruments that have been measured at fair value. Historical cost is generally based on the fair 

value of consideration received or receivable in exchange for goods and services.  

 

2.2 Basis of aggregation 
 

The financial statements include the financial statements of the head office and its branches after 

the elimination of all significant inter-branch balances and transactions. 

 

2.3 Foreign currencies translation  
 

(a) Functional and presentation currency 
 

Items included in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using the currency of the 

primary economic environment in which the Bank operates (‘the functional currency’). The Bank 

transacts essentially in US Dollar (“USD”) and maintains its books of accounts primarily in USD, 

as the Management has determined the USD to be the Bank’s measurement and functional 

currency as it reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances of the 

Bank. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.3 Foreign currencies translation (continued)  
 

(b) Transactions and balances 
 

Transactions in currencies other than the USD are translated into the functional currency using the 

exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting 

from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of 

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the USD are recognized in 

the statement of comprehensive income. 

 

2.4 Presentation in Khmer Riel  
 

In compliance with the Law on Accounting and Auditing, a translation of the financial statements 

from USD to Khmer Riel (KHR) is required. The statements of comprehensive income and cash 

flows are translated into thousand Khmer Riel (“KHR’000”) using the average rates for the years. 

Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing 

rates as of the reporting dates. Resulting exchange difference arising from the translation is 

recognized in the other comprehensive income. The Bank has used the following official rates of 

exchange published by the National Bank of Cambodia: 

 

Reporting date s Closing rates Average rates 

31 December 2021 USD1 = KHR4,074 USD1 = KHR4,068 

31 December 2020 USD1 = KHR4,045 USD1 = KHR4,080 

 

These convenience translations should not be construed as representations that the United States 

Dollar amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be, converted into Khmer Riel 

at this or any other rates of exchange. 

 

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, non-restricted balances with the NBC and 

balances with other banks which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash within three 

months and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

2.6 Capital guarantee deposits with central bank 
 

Capital guarantee deposits represent mandatory reserve deposits and cash maintained with the 

NBC in compliance with the Law on Banking and Financial Institutions (“LBFI”) and are not 

available to finance the Bank day-to-day operations and hence are not considered as part of cash 

and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows. 

 

2.7 Financial instruments  
 

The Bank has applied CIFRS 9 from 1 January 2019 following the below policies regarding 

financial instruments:  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.7 Financial instruments (continued)  
 

(i) Measurement methods  
 

Amortized cost and effective interest rate 
 

The amortized cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at 

initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization 

using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity 

amount and, for financial asset, adjusted for any loss allowance.  

 

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or 

receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying 

amount of a financial asset (i.e. its amortized cost before any impairment allowance) or to the 

amortized cost of a financial liability. The calculation does not consider expected credit losses and 

includes transaction costs, premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are 

integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees.  

 

When the Bank revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying amount of the respective 

financial assets or financial liabilities is adjusted to reflect the new estimate discounted using the 

original effective interest rate. Any changes are recognized in profit or loss.  

 

Fair value  
 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between buyer and seller (market participants) at the measurement date. The 

Bank applies a quoted market price in an active market to measure its assets and liabilities that are 

required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting standards. Except in case of 

no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted market price is not available, 

the Bank measures fair value using valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances 

and maximizes the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are 

required to be measured at fair value.  

 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 

are categorized within the fair value hierarchy into three levels based on categories of input to be 

used in fair value measurement as follows:  

 

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities  

Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly  

Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows.  

 

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank determines whether transfers have occurred between 

levels within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period 

that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.7 Financial instruments (continued)  
 

(ii) Recognition and initial measurement  
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the statement of financial position when 

the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Regular way purchases 

and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Bank commits to 

purchase or sell the assets. 

 

At initial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value plus 

or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or 

loss, transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of 

the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs of 

financial assets and financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in 

profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is 

recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost and investments in debt instruments 

measured at FVOCI which results in an accounting loss being recognized in profit or loss when 

an asset is newly originated.  

 

(iii) Financial assets  
 

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost 

or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

 

a) Classification and subsequent measurement  
 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost:  

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets 

in order to collect contractual cash flows; and  

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding (SPPI).  

 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):  

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both 

collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and  

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

SPPI.  

 

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL). 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.7 Financial instruments (continued)  
 

(iii) Financial assets (continued) 
 

a) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 

Debt instruments at amortized cost or at FVTOCI 
 

The Bank assess the classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments based on the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the asset and the Bank’s business model for managing the asset.  
 
For an asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI, its contractual terms 
should give rise to cash flows that are SPPI. 
 
The Bank classifies its debt instruments into amortized cost. Assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest 
(‘SPPI’), and that are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortized cost. The carrying amount of 
these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance recognized. Interest income from these 
financial assets is included in ‘Interest income’ using the effective interest rate method.  
 
SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows or to collect contractual 
cash flows and sell, the Bank assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest (the ‘SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Bank considers 
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes 
only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin 
that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to 
risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is 
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss. 
 
Business model: the business model reflects how the Bank manages the assets in order to generate 
cash flows. That is, whether the Bank’s objective is solely to collect the contractual cash flows 
from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale 
of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading purposes), then 
the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’ business model and measured at FVTPL. 
Factors considered by the Bank in determining the business model for a group of assets include 
past experience on how the cash flows for these assets were collected, how the asset’s performance 
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and managed and 
how managers are compensated. 
 
Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI 
 

On initial recognition, the Bank may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at 
FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading or if it is contingent 
consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination. 
 
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction 
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in 
fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments 
revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal 
of the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to retained earnings.  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.7 Financial instruments (continued)  
 

(iii) Financial assets (continued) 
 

a) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued) 
 

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI 
 

The Bank have designated investment in equity instruments that are not held for trading at 

FVTOCI.  
 

Dividend on the investment in equity instruments is recognized in profit or loss when the Bank’s 

right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of 

part of the cost of the investment. 

 

b) Impairment of financial assets 
 

The Bank applies a three-stage approach to measuring expected credit losses (ECLs) for the debt 

instruments measured at amortized cost.  
 

No impairment loss is recognized on equity investments. 
 

Financial assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change in credit risk since 

initial recognition:  
 

Stage 1: 12-month ECL  
 

For exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 

and that are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion of the lifetime ECL associated with 

the probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months is recognized.  
 

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL – not credit impaired  
 

For exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition 

but are not credit impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining lifetime of the financial 

asset) is recognized.  
 

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL – credit impaired  
 

Exposures are assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact 

on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred. For exposures that have become 

credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated by applying the 

effective interest rate to the amortized cost (net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.  

 

Determining the stage for impairment  
 

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit 

risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the 

expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The Bank considers 

reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort 

for this purpose. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.7 Financial instruments (continued)  
 

(iii) Financial assets (continued) 
 

b) Impairment of financial assets (continued) 
 

Determining the stage for impairment  
 

This includes quantitative and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis. An 

exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as asset quality deteriorates. If, in a subsequent 

period, asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant increase in 

credit risk since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-

months ECL. Exposures that have not deteriorated significantly since origination, or where the 

deterioration remains within the Bank’s investment grade criteria, or which are less than 30 days 

past due, are considered to have a low credit risk. The provision for doubtful debts for these 

financial assets is based on a 12-months ECL. 
 

When an asset is uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision. Such assets are written 

off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been 

determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the amount of the 

expense in the statement of income.  
 

The Bank assesses whether the credit risk on an exposure has increased significantly on an 

individual or collective basis. For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial 

instruments are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account credit 

risk ratings of the borrowers. 

 

Measurement of ECLs  
 

ECLs are derived from unbiased and probability-weighted estimates of expected loss, and are 

measured as follows: 

• Financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all 

cash shortfalls over the expected life of the financial asset discounted by the effective 

interest rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows due to the Bank in 

accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive.  

• Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the 

gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted by 

the effective interest rate.  

 

Definition of default 
 

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used 

in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based 

on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which 

affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.  
 

The Bank consider the following as constituting an event of default:  

• the borrower is past due more than 30 days and 60 days for short-term and long-term 

respectively on any material credit obligation to the Bank; or  

• the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full.  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.7 Financial instruments (continued)  
 

(iii) Financial assets (continued) 
 

b) Impairment of financial assets (continued) 
 

Definition of default 
 

This definition of default is used by the Bank for accounting purposes as well as for internal credit 

risk management purposes and is broadly aligned to the regulatory definition of default. The 

definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types 

of assets. 
 

Presentation of impairment for ECL in the statement of financial position  
 

Impairment for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:  

• for financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying 

amount of the assets;  

• for loan commitments: as a provision; and  

• where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the 

Bank cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on 

the drawn component: the Bank present a combined loss allowance for both components. 

The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the 

drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn 

component is presented as a provision.  

 

c) Modification and derecognition of financial assets  
 

The Bank sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to 

customers. When this happens, the Bank assesses whether or not the new terms are substantially 

different to the original terms. The Bank does this by considering, among others, the following factors:  

• If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification merely reduces the 

contractual cash flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.  

• Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as a profit share/equity-based return 

that substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.  

• Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in financial difficulty.  

• Significant change in the interest rate.  

• Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.  

• Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that significantly affect the 

credit risk associated with the loan.  
 

If the terms are substantially different, the Bank derecognizes the original financial asset and 

recognizes a ‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. 

The date of renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial recognition for 

impairment calculation purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a significant 

increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Bank also assesses whether the new financial 

asset recognized is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in circumstances 

where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally agreed 

payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also recognized in profit or loss as a gain or loss 

on derecognition.  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.7 Financial instruments (continued)  
 

(iii) Financial assets (continued) 
 

c) Modification and derecognition of financial assets 
 

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or modification does not result in 

derecognition, and the Bank recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash 

flows of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. The new 

gross carrying amount is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original 

effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-

impaired financial assets). 

 

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive the 

cash flows from the assets have expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) the 

Bank transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (ii) the Bank neither 

transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Bank has not 

retained control.  

 

(iv) Financial liabilities  
 

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or to 

exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are 

potentially unfavorable to the Bank or a contract that will or may be settled in the Bank’s own 

equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Bank are or may be obliged to 

deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity 

that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or another 

financial asset) for a fixed number of the Bank’s own equity instruments. 

 

a)  Classification and subsequent measurement  
 

In both the current and prior period, debt instruments are classified as financial liabilities and 

subsequently measured at amortized cost.  

 

The Bank’s financial liabilities include borrowings and other liabilities.  

 

b)  Derecognition  
 

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 

cancelled or expired. 

 

(v) Offsetting of financial instruments 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement 

of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts 

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities 

simultaneously.  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.8 Regulatory provision and reserves  
 

Based on the Central Bank’s Prakas No. B7-017-344 dated 1 December 2017 and Circular No. 

B7-018-001 dated 16 February 2018 on credit risk grading and impairment provisioning, banks 

and financial institutions are required to provide impairment provisioning for all financial facilities 

which are classified into five classifications and the minimum regulatory provision is made 

depending on the classification concerned, as follows:  
 

Classification  Number of days past due  
Type of 

provision 
 

Rate of 

allowances 

       
Normal/ 

Standard 
 

- Less than 15 days (original term of up to one year) 

- Less than 30 days (original term of more than one year)  
 

General 

provision 
 1% 

       
Special 

mention 
 

- 15 days and more (original term of up to one year) 

- 30 days and more (original term of more than one year) 
 

Specific 

provision 
 3% 

       

Substandard  
- 31 days and more (original term of up to one year) 

- 90 days and more (original term of more than one year) 
 

Specific 

provision 
 20% 

       
Doubtful  

- 61 days and more (original term of up to one year) 

- 180 days and more (original term of more than one year) 
 

Specific 

provision 
 50% 

       
Loss  

- 91 days and more (original term of up to one year) 

- 360 days and more (original term of more than one year) 
 

Specific 

provision 
 100% 

 

The facilities under this Prakas are defined as all loans, other financial products and off-the 

statement of financial position financial commitments, provided by the Bank to a counterparty, 

which give rise to credit risk exposure. 

 

The Bank calculates the impairment provisioning for financial facilities in accordance with the 

regulatory provision and CIFRSs, simultaneously. The impairment provisioning calculated in 

accordance with CIFRSs is to be recognized and recorded in profit or loss and statement of 

financial position. When the impairment provisioning calculated in accordance with regulatory 

provision is higher than that calculated under the CIFRSs, the excess amount is transferred from 

retained earnings to regulatory reserves.  

 

When the impairment provisioning calculated in accordance with regulatory provision is 

subsequently less than that calculated under the CIFRSs, the regulatory reserve is reversed at the 

amount that does not exceed the amount that would have been determined, had no regulatory 

reserve been recognized in prior years. 

 

2.9 Property and equipment 
 

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 

losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the 

items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate 

asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the 

item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and 

maintenance are charged to the statement of income during the financial year in which they are 

incurred. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.9 Property and equipment (continued) 
 

Depreciation of property and equipment is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over 

the estimated useful lives of the individual assets at the following rates per annum: 
 

Leasehold improvement 25% 

Furniture and fixtures 25% 

Equipment  25% 

Computer equipment 50% 

Motor vehicles 20% 

 

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the 

higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

 

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains and losses on disposal are determined by 

comparing proceeds with the carrying amounts and are recognized in profit or loss on the date of 

disposal. 

 

2.10 Leases 
 

According to the new standard CIFRS 16, the new definition of leases relies on both the 
identification of an asset and the control of the right to use the identified asset by the lessee. 
 
As a lessee, CIFRS 16 requires recognition in the statement of financial position of all leases, 
except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets which are recognized on a straight-line 
basis as an expense in profit or loss, in the form of a right-of-use on the leased asset along with the 
recognition of a lease liability. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of twelve months or 
less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office furniture. 
 
The Bank, as a lessee, recognizes lease liabilities as the present value of the remaining lease 
payment discounted by the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of transition. The right-
of-use assets are equal to the lease liability adjusted by any prepayment or accrual. 
 
The lease liabilities and right-of-use assets are presented as separate lines in the statement of 
financial position.  
 
(i)  Lease liabilities 
 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments discounted using 
the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the 
EIR method.  
 
The subsequent measurement of lease liability is calculated as the previous measurement plus 
finance cost on the lease liability, minus any lease payment made and adjustment regarding re-
measurement in case of lease modification. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the 
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability for each period. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.10 Leases (continued) 
 

(ii) Right-of-use assets 
 

At initial recognition, the right-of-use is measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of 

the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made, plus any initial cost incurred and an 

estimate of costs of dismantling or restoring the underlying asset.  

 

Subsequently, the Bank applies the cost model to right-of-use assets. The right-of-use asset is 

subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end 

of the lease term.  

 

(iii) Deferred tax 
 

Deferred tax will be recorded on the basis of the net amount of taxable and deductible temporary 

differences. On the date of the initial recording of the right-of-use and the lease liability, no 

deferred tax will be recorded as the asset value is equal to the liability value. The net temporary 

differences that may result from subsequent changes in the right-to-use and lease liability will 

result in the recognition of deferred tax. 

 

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets  
 

At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If such indication exists, then the asset’s 

recoverable amount is estimated.  

 

Impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell 

and value in use.   

 

Any impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises. Reversal of 

impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does 

not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and 

amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized. 

 

2.12 Provisions 
 

Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 

of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligations; 

and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.  
 

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, 

based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and 

uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present 

values, where the time value of money is material. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.13 Employment benefits 
 

(i) Short-term employee benefits 
 

Short-term employee benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered 
by the employees of the Bank. 
 

(ii) Seniority payment 
 

The Ministry of Labor and Vocational Training (MoLVT) issued a Prakas No. 443 MLVT/Br.k 
dated 21 September 2018 introducing seniority payment for unspecified duration employment 
contract (UDC) from 1 January 2019 and the Bank is required to pay its employees the seniority 
payment amounting to 15 days per annum calculated on the average wages plus other benefits; 
and 7.5 days of which are to be made every six month on 30 June and 31 December.  
 

The Directive No. 042/19 on the Back Pay of Seniority Payment Before 2019 for Enterprises and 

Institutions Besides Textile, Garment and Footwear Sector dated 22 March 2019 requires the Bank 

to pay past seniority payment to employees with UDC. All employees who have been working 

before 1 January 2019 and still continue working with the Bank are entitled to a payment of six 

(6) days of their average wages of each year of service and shall be paid every year starting 

December 2021, of which 3 days shall be made in June and 3 days shall be made in December of 

each year. The past seniority payment depends on each staff past services and shall not exceed 6 

months of average gross salaries. The implementation of this Directive has been suspended until 

the year 2021 as per the Announcement No. 018/20 dated 2 June 2020. 
 

Employees are not entitled to the remaining past seniority payment upon resignation or 

termination due to serious misconduct. 
 

The past seniority liability is measured at the present value of defined obligation at the reporting period 
using the projected until credit method to better estimate the ultimate cost to the Bank that employees 
have earned in return for their services in the current and prior period. That obligation arises as 
employees render the services that the Bank expects to pay in the future reporting periods. The present 
value of the past seniority payments is determined by discounting the estimate future payments by 
references to the high quality corporate bond of the currency that the liability is denominated. 
 

2.14 Net interest income 
 

Interest income and expenses relating to financial instruments measured at amortized cost are 
recognized in the profit and loss account using the effective interest rate method (EIR). The EIR is the 
rate that ensures the discounted value of estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the 
financial asset. The EIR measurement should take into accounts, if significant, all fees and 
commissions received or paid that are an integral part of the EIR of the contract and transaction costs. 
 

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount 
of non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortized cost of the financial asset before 
adjusting for any expected credit loss provision), except for:  

• Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (‘POCI’), for which the original 
credit-adjusted EIR is applied to the amortized cost of the financial assets.  

• Financial assets that are not ‘POCI’ but have subsequently become credit-impaired (or ‘stage 
3’), for which interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to their amortized cost (i.e. 
the gross carrying amount less the expected credit loss provision).  
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

2.14 Net interest income (continued) 
 

Interest expenses are recognized by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying 
amount of financial liabilities. 
 
2.15 Fee and service income and expense 
 

The Bank records fee and service income in profit or loss: 

• Either over-time as the service is rendered when the client receives continuous service; or  

• At a point-in-time when the service is rendered, in other cases.  
 
In the Bank, the contracts that are the most concerned by the new standard are related to banking 
services contracts that lead to the recognition of fee income on completion of the underlying 
transaction (remittance, commission, penalty fees, …). 
 
Fee and service expenses are recognized on an accrual basis as the services are received.  
 
2.16 Income tax 
 

Income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the 
profit or loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly to equity, in which 
case, it is recognized in equity. Taxes other than on income are recorded within operating expenses. 
 
Current tax is calculated on the basis of taxable profit using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantially enacted at the reporting date in accordance with Cambodian Law on Taxation. 
 
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The amount of deferred tax provided is based 
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, 
using tax rate enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. 
 

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is more likely than not that future 
taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 
 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same 
taxation authority and the Bank intend to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 
 
2.17 Related parties 
 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the 
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating 
decisions. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities and include close family 
members of any individual considered to be related party. 
 

Under the LBFI, the definition of related parties includes parties who hold, directly or indirectly, 
at least 10 percent of the capital or voting rights and includes any individual who participates in 
the administration, direction, management or internal control of the Bank. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  
 

The Bank makes estimates and judgements that have significant affect reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical 
experience and other factors, including expectations with regard to future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates may differ from actual results.  
 

3.1 Significant judgements 
 

In applying the Bank’s accounting policies, the Directors have made the following judgements 
which have most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.  
 

(i) Business model assessment  
 

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the 
business model test. The Bank determine the business model at a level that reflects how groups of 
financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment 
includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets 
is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets 
and how these are managed. The Bank monitors financial assets measured at amortized cost or 
fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognized prior to their maturity to 
understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective 
of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Bank’s continuous 
assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held 
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business 
model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. 
 

(ii) Measurement of expected credit losses  
 

This applies in particular to the assessment of significant increase in credit risk, various models 
and assumptions used to measure expected credit losses (ECL), the determination of the different 
economic scenarios and their weighting. ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month 
ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 
when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the 
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased, the Bank take into account qualitative and 
quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking information. 
 

3.2 Estimates and assumptions 
 

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 
 

(i) Calculation of impairment loss  
 

When measuring expected credit losses, the Bank use reasonable and supportable forward looking 
information, which is based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers 
and how these drivers will affect each other.   
 

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between 
the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into 
account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements.  
 

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL. Probability of default is an 
estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes 
historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions. 
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued) 
 

3.2 Estimates and assumptions 
 

(ii) Useful lives of property and equipment 
 

Accounting for property and equipment involves the use of estimates for determining the expected 

useful lives of these assets. The determination of the useful lives of the assets is based on 

management’s estimates. 

 

(iii) Taxes  
 

Taxes are calculated on the basis of current interpretation of the tax regulations. However, these 

regulations are subject to periodic variation and the ultimate determination of tax expenses will 

be made following inspection by the General Department of Taxation (GDT). Where the final tax 

outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will have an 

impact on the tax provisions in the financial period in which such determination is made. These 

factors may create significant tax exposure for the Bank. The Directors believe that they have 

understood relevant tax regulations and adequately provided for tax liabilities based on their 

interpretation of current tax regulations. 

 

4. CASH IN HAND 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Cash in hand, Head Office 423,578  1,725,658  372,100  1,505,146 

Cash in hand, Branches 1,395,884  5,686,830  1,028,938  4,162,053 
        

 1,819,462  7,412,488  1,401,038  5,667,199 

        

US Dollar 1,788,808  7,287,604  1,398,912  5,658,600 

Khmer Riel 30,654  124,884  2,126  8,599 
        

 1,819,462  7,412,488  1,401,038  5,667,199 

 

5. BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANK 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Current account with Central Bank 9,925,323  40,435,766  4,724,948  19,112,415 
        

 9,925,323  40,435,766  4,724,948  19,112,415 

 

Current account with Central Bank is non-interest bearing.  

 

6. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Current accounts 3,453,018  14,067,595  1,435,420  5,806,274 
        

 3,453,018  14,067,595  1,435,420  5,806,274 
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7. CAPITAL GUARANTEE WITH CENTRAL BANK 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Capital guarantee deposit 1,500,000  6,111,000  1,000,000  4,045,000 
       

 
 1,500,000  6,111,000  1,000,000  4,045,000 

 

Capital guarantee: 
 

Under Prakas No. B7-06-208 dated 13 September 2006 on the amendment to Article 9 and Article 

13 of Prakas No. B7-00-05 on licensing of specialized banks, the Bank is required to maintain a 

capital guarantee deposit of 5% of its registered capital with the NBC. The deposit is not available 

for use in the Bank’s day-to-day operations but is refundable when the Bank voluntarily ceases its 

operations in Cambodia. 

 

The above deposits earn interest at the following rates per annum: 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
    

Capital guarantee deposit 0.04% - 0.06%  0.06% - 0.48% 

 

8. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Loans to customers 26,108,265  106,365,072  21,978,730  88,903,963 

Allowances for expected credit losses (970,938)  (3,955,603)  (669,835)  (2,709,481) 
        

Net loans to customers 25,137,327  102,409,469  21,308,895  86,194,482 

 

Movements on allowances for expected credit losses are as follows: 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

At beginning of year 669,835  2,709,481  660,429  2,691,248 
Addition during the year 405,761  1,653,072  359,048  1,452,347 
Unwinds of discount (104,658)  (426,376)  (349,642)  (1,414,301) 
Currency translation -  19,426  -  (19,813) 
        

At end of year 970,938  3,955,603  669,835  2,709,481 
 

Further analysis of the above loans to customers is provided below: 
 

(a) Classification by relationship: 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

External customers 25,934,154  105,655,743  21,743,216  87,951,309 

Staff loans 174,111  709,329  235,514  952,654 
        

 26,108,265  106,365,072  21,978,730  88,903,963 
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8. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS (continued) 
 

(b) Classification by maturity period: 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Not later than 1 year 287,572  1,171,569  3,872,032  15,662,369 

Later than 1 year no later than 3 years 3,533,926  14,397,215  3,060,254  12,378,729 

Later than 3 years and no later than 5 years 10,385,900  42,312,155  7,429,591  30,052,694 

Later than 5 years 11,900,867  48,484,133  7,616,853  30,810,171 
        

 26,108,265  106,365,072  21,978,730  88,903,963 

 

(c) Classified by loan performance: 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 

 Gross 

carrying 

amount    ECL   

 Carrying 

amount   

 Gross 

carrying 

amount    ECL   

 Carrying 

amount  

 USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD 
            

Performing 5,143,484  (16,410)  5,127,074  1,247,220  (5,575)  1,241,645 

Under-performing 6,978,639  (144,458)  6,834,181  10,748,752  (143,772)  10,604,980 

Non-performing 13,986,142  (810,070)  13,176,072  9,982,758  (520,488)  9,462,270 
            

 26,108,265  (970,938)  25,137,327  21,978,730  (669,835)  21,308,895 
            

Equivalent in KHR’000 106,365,072  (3,955,603)  102,409,470  88,903,963  (2,709,481)  86,194,482 
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9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  
 

  

Leasehold  

improvement  

Furniture & 

fixtures  Equipment  

Computers & 

equipment  

Motor  

vehicles  Total 

 USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD 

Cost            

At 1 January 2021 4,276  39,075  36,958  84,953  127,254  292,516 

Additions -  924  997  420  -  2,341 

Write of -  -  (155)  -  (2,834)  (2,989) 
            

At 31 December 2021 4,276  39,999  37,800  85,373  124,420  291,867 

            

Accumulated depreciation            

At 1 January 2021 3,809  30,967  30,144  81,055  126,443  272,418 

Charge for the year 192  3,024  2,619  2,261  689  8,784 

Write of -  -  (155)  -  (2,834)  (2,989) 
            

At 31 December 2021 4,001  33,991  32,606  83,316  124,298  278,211 

            
Net book value            

            

At 31 December 2021 275  6,008  5,194  2,058  122  13,656 

            
Equivalent in KHR’000 1,120  24,475  21,160  8,385  495  55,635 
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9. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 

 

  

Leasehold  

improvement  

Furniture & 

fixtures  Equipment  

Computers & 

equipment  

Motor  

vehicles  Total 

 USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD 

Cost            

At 1 January 2020 4,276  34,950  35,015  80,673  127,254  282,168 

Additions -  4,125  1,943  4,280  -  10,348 
            

At 31 December 2020 4,276  39,075  36,958  84,953  127,254  292,516 

            

Accumulated depreciation            

At 1 January 2020 3,617  28,687  27,666  76,107  123,178  259,255 

Charge for the year 192  2,280  2,478  4,948  3,265  13,163 
            

At 31 December 2020 3,809  30,967  30,144  81,055  126,443  272,418 

            
Net book value            

            

At 31 December 2020 467  8,108  6,814  3,898  811  20,098 

            
Equivalent in KHR’000 1,889  32,795  27,564  15,768  3,280  81,296 
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10. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 
 

The Bank leases several offices to operate its banking activities. The lease terms are ranging from 

1 year to 3 years. 

 

When measuring lease liabilities for leases, the Bank discount lease payments applying 

incremental borrowing rate of 9.5% (2020: 9.5%).  
 

 31 Dec 2020 

 Office rental 

 USD 

Cost  

At 1 January 2021         78,491  

Additions - 
  

At 31 December 2021 78,491 

  

Accumulated depreciation  

At 1 January 2021 (52,327) 

Charge for the year (26,164) 
  

At 31 December 2021 (78,491) 
  

Carrying amounts - 

  

Equivalent in KHR’000 - 

  

 31 Dec 2020 

 Office rental 

 USD 

Cost  

At 1 January 2020       294,291  

Additions               -    

Derecognition     (215,800) 
  

At 31 December 2020         78,491  

  

Accumulated depreciation  

At 1 January 2020     (210,063) 

Additions       (58,064) 

Derecognition       215,800  
  

At 31 December 2020       (52,327) 
  

Carrying amounts         26,164  

  

Equivalent in KHR’000       105,832 
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11. OTHER ASSETS  
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Security deposit 1,861  7,582  1,861  7,528 
Other assets 106,846  435,291  107,632  435,370 
        

 108,707  442,873  109,493  442,898 

 
12. LEASE LIABILITIES 
 

As at 31 December 2021, all existing leases with lease terms of more than 12 months were expired. 
Starting from 1 January 2022, all renewed lease agreements have maximum lease terms of 12 
months and will be reviewed and renewed annually subject to mutual agreement; there is no 
extension option in the new lease agreements. As a result, the Bank designates all the leases as 
short-term leases on the commencement date; and the lease payments associated with the relevant 
leases are expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. 
 
 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Lease liabilities as at 1 January 28,571  115,570  88,260  359,660 
Lease addition during the year -  -  -  - 
Derecognition -  -  (3,407)  (13,901) 
Lease principal payment during the year (28,571)  (116,225)  (56,282)  (229,631) 
Currency translation difference -  655  -  (558) 
        

Lease liabilities as at 31 December -  -  28,571  115,570 
        

Lease liabilities - Current -  -  28,571  115,570 
Lease liabilities - Non-current -  -  -  - 
        

 -  -  28,571  115,570 

 
Maturity analysis – contractual undiscounted cash flows: 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Year 1  -  -  30,000  121,350 
        

Unearned interest  -  -  (1,429)  (5,780) 
        

 -  -  28,571  115,570 

 
13. OTHERS LIABILITIES 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Unearned income 147,168  599,562  154,012  622,979 
Accrued and others 26,843  109,358  16,785  67,895 
Employee benefits (*) 47,625  194,024  91,534  370,255 
Others 155,115  631,940  15,229  61,602 
        

 376,751  1,534,884  277,560  1,122,731 

 
(*) This represents the seniority payments that the Bank is obliged to pay in accordance with 

the Prakas on Seniority Payment issued by the Ministry of Labor and Vocational Training 
on 21 September 2018. 
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14. SHARE CAPITAL 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Issued and fully paid 30,000,000  122,220,000  20,000,000  80,900,000 
        

 30,000,000  122,220,000  20,000,000  80,900,000 

 

On 10 March 2021, a resolution was passed by the Board of Directors to increase the share capital 

by 100,000 shares, from 200,000 shares to 300,000 shares at par value of USD100 per share.  

 

The capital increase was approved by NBC on 26 May 2021 and the revised Articles of 

Association was approved by the Ministry of Commerce on 07 September 2021. 

 

15. REGULATORY RESERVE 
 

Regulatory reserve is pertaining to the requirement by the NBC. See note 2.8.  

 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Regulatory reserve 7,779,740  31,694,659  4,953,759  20,037,954 
        

 7,779,740  31,694,659  4,953,759  20,037,954 

 

Movements of regulatory reserve are as follows: 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

At 1 January 4,953,759  20,037,954  2,989,756  12,183,256 
        

Impairment on credit facilities required by the NBC        

Balances with other banks 16,423  66,909  16,423  66,432 

Loans to customers 8,864,431  36,113,692  5,667,238  22,923,978 
        

 8,880,854  36,180,601  5,683,661  22,990,410 
        

Impairment loss on financial assets under CIFRSs 1,101,115  4,485,942  729,903  2,952,457 
        

Transfer (from)/to reserve relating to impairment 

during the year 2,825,981  11,513,045  1,964,003  7,944,391 

Currency translation -  20,181,614  -  12,093,563 
        

 7,779,740  31,694,659  4,953,759  20,037,954 
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16. INTEREST INCOME  
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Loans to customers 3,489,127  14,193,769  2,877,289  11,739,339 

Balances with the NBC 622  2,531  2,134  8,707 
        

 3,489,749  14,196,300  2,879,423  11,748,046 

 

17. INTEREST EXPENSE  
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Interest expense - leases 1,429  5,813  5,511  22,485 
        

 1,429  5,813  5,511  22,485 

 

18. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Penalty fees 59,342  241,403  67,859  276,865 

Other income 21,169  86,116  20,735  84,599 
        

 80,511  327,519  88,594  361,464 

 

19. PERSONNEL COSTS 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Salaries and wages 693,332  2,820,474  722,275  2,946,882 

Other employee benefits 43,794  178,154  36,543  149,095 
        

 737,126  2,998,628  758,818  3,095,977 

 

20. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Depreciation of property and equipment (note 9) 8,784  35,734  13,163  53,705 

Depreciation of right-of-use asset (note 10) 26,164  106,434  58,064  236,901 
        

 34,948  142,168  71,227  290,606 
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21. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Low value and short-term rental 177,000  720,036  134,600  549,168 

Legal and professional fees 27,042  110,009  26,333  107,439 

Utilities expenses 95,771  389,597  98,104  400,264 

Bank license fees 76,677  311,921  73,137  298,399 

Motor vehicles operating expenses 12,044  48,994  13,239  54,015 

Other building expenses 7,976  32,446  8,209  33,493 

Communication fees 7,808  31,763  6,970  28,438 

Other taxes expenses 8,683  35,320  9,319  38,022 

Office supplies and stationeries 4,238  17,240  3,601  14,692 

Dues and membership 6,988  28,427  3,500  14,280 

Business meals and entertainment 45  183  190  775 

Other expenses 17,651  71,805  1,625  6,629 
        

 441,923  1,797,741  378,827  1,545,614 

 

22. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Impairment loss/(write back on impairment 

loss) on loans to customers 405,761  1,650,636  359,048  1,464,916 

Impairment loss/(write back on impairment 

loss) on others 70,124  285,264  106,830  435,866 
        

 475,885  1,935,900  465,878  1,900,782 

 

23. INCOME TAX 
 

 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Current tax 22,812  92,799  20,088  81,959 

Deferred tax 8,035  32,687  1,678  6,846 
        

 30,847  125,486  21,766  88,805 

 
(a) Current tax payable 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Balance at beginning of year 1,803  7,293  374,074  1,524,352 

Charge during the year 22,812  92,799  20,088  81,959 

Taxation paid during the year (22,269)  (90,590)  (392,359)  (1,600,825) 

Under/(over) provision (272)  (1,106)  -  - 

Currency translation difference -  53  -  1,807 
        

Balance at end of year 2,074  8,449  1,803  7,293 
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23. INCOME TAX (continued) 
 

(b) Reconciliation of current income tax 
 

In accordance with the Cambodian Law on Taxation, the Bank has an obligation to pay corporate 

income tax of either the profit tax at the rate of 20% of taxable profit or the minimum tax at 1% 

of gross revenue, whichever is higher. 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 

        
Profit before income tax 1,878,950  7,643,569  1,287,757  5,254,046 

        

Income tax @ 20% 375,790  1,528,714  257,551  1,050,808 

Effects of non-deductible expenses  2,642  10,748  (5,198)  (21,208) 

Effects of non-taxable income  (378,432)  (1,539,462)  (252,353)  (1,029,600) 
        

 -  -  -  - 
        

Minimum tax @ 1%  22,812  92,799  20,088  81,959 
        

Income tax expenses 22,812  92,799  20,088  81,959 

 
(c) Deferred tax 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 
        

Deferred tax assets 38,869  158,352  46,904  189,727 
        

 38,869  158,352  46,904  189,727 

 
Movements on deferred tax are as follows: 
 

 

Property and 

equipment  

Impairment 

loss on financial 

assets  

Seniority 

payment 

obligation  Total 
 USD  USD  USD  USD 
       

 
 

At 1 January 2020 3,609  31,202  13,771  48,582 

Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 

for the year (462)  (5,752)  4,536  (1,678) 
        

At 31 December 2020 3,147  25,450  18,307  46,904 
        

Equivalent in KHR’000 12,730  102,945  74,052  189,727         
At 1 January 2021 3,147  25,450  18,307  46,904 

Credited/(charged) to profit or loss 

for the year (924)  1,671  (8,782)  (8,035) 
        

At 31 December 2021 2,223  27,121  9,525  38,869 

        

Equivalent in KHR’000 9,057  110,491  38,805  158,352 
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24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  
 

24.1 Loan commitments 
 

In the normal course of business, the Bank makes various commitments with legal recourse to its 

customers. At the year-end, there is no contractual commitments arising from off-balance sheet 

financial instruments of the Bank since all the leases are designated by the Bank as short-term 

leases.  

 

24.2 Tax contingencies  
 

Taxes are calculated on the basis of current interpretation of the tax regulations. However, the 

application of tax laws and regulations on many types of transactions is susceptible to varying 

interpretations when reviewed by the tax authorities. The Bank’s judgement of its business activities 

may not coincide with the interpretation of the same activities by the tax authorities. 

 

If a particular treatment was to be challenged by those tax authorities, the Bank may be assessed 

additional taxes, penalties and interest, which can be significant. Tax years remain open to review by 

the General Department of Taxation for three years with a possible extension of up to ten years. 

 

25. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS 
 

Significant related party balance and transactions for the year are as follows: 

 

(a) Related party transactions 
 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 
 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 

        

Remuneration for management and 
board of directors 226,320  920,670  225,900  921,672 

Rental of office building from the 
shareholders 175,200  712,714  168,000  685,440 

        

 401,520  1,633,384  393,900  1,607,112 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  
 

The Bank’s risk management is to identify all key risks, measure these risks, manage the risk 
positions and determine capital allocations. The financial risks arising from financial business to 
which the Bank’s activities are exposed are credit risk, market risk (including foreign exchange 
risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. The following are policies and guidelines adopted by 
the Bank to manage risks related to its business activities. 
 
26.1 Credit risk 
 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank as a result of default by the borrowers or 
counterparties on fulfilling its contractual obligation. 
 
The primary exposure to credit risk arises from loans to customers and through the Bank’s lending 
activities. The lending activities are guided by the Bank’s credit policy to ensure that the overall 
objectives in the area of lending are achieved. The credit policy documents the lending policy, 
collateral policy and credit approval processes, including the Bank’s own internal grading system 
and effective procedures implemented.  
 
The Bank also set up the Credit Risk Policy which is designed to govern the Bank’s risk 
undertaking activities. Procedures of risk limit setting, monitoring, usage, and control are 
governed by credit programs which set out the plan for a particular product or portfolio, including 
the target market, terms and conditions, documentation and procedures under which a credit 
product will be offered and measured. 
 
(a) Credit risk management 
 

Directors are responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk 
management strategies and principles.  
 
The Risk Committee has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and 
implementing principles, frameworks, policies and limits. The Risk Committee is responsible for 
managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels and reports to the Directors. 
 
The Credit department is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to 
ensure an independent control process is maintained. The department works closely with and 
reports to the Risk Committee to ensure that procedures are compliant with the overall framework. 
 
The internal audit function performs regular audits making sure that the established controls and 
procedures are adequately designed and implemented. 
 
(b) Risk mitigation 
 

The Bank manages, limits and controls concentration of credit risk whenever they are identified - 
in particular, to individual counterparties and to industries. 
 
Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of the borrowers and 
potential borrowers to meet its contractual obligations and reviewing these lending limits where 
appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed by obtaining collaterals from customers. 
Limits on level of credit risk by product and industry sector are approved by the Credit department. 
 
In general, all of the Bank’s loans to customers are collateralized with collaterals pledged to the 
Bank, and accordingly the Bank normally assumes minimal risks. 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.1 Credit risk (continued) 
 

(c) Risk measurement 
 

The Bank’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise 

in normal circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss 

based on statistical models. The models make use of probabilities derived from historical 

experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment. However, this measurement is not 

performed on the basis of scenarios that the Bank does not reasonably expect to occur, such as so-

called ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios.  

 

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Bank. 

These limits reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Bank as well as the level 

of risk that the Bank is willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected industries. 

 

(d) Significant increase in credit risk 
 

The Bank continuously monitors all financial assets subject to impairment in order to assess 

whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has 

been a significant increase in credit risk, the Bank will measure the loss allowance based on 

lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.  

 

The Bank use day past due (DPD) as a primary input into the determination of the term structure 

of the PD for exposures. The Bank collect performance and default information about its credit 

risk exposures analyzed by type of product and borrower as well as by credit risk grading. The 

information used is both internal and external depending on the portfolio assessed. The table below 

provides a summary of the Bank’s internal credit risk grades. 
 

No.  Bank’s rating  PD Range  

1  Standard  2.83% - 32.35% 

2  Special mention  32.35% - 62.90% 

3  Substandard  62.90% - 100%  

4  Doubtful  100%  

5  Loss  100%  

 

The Bank presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 

recognition when contractual payments are more than 15 days and 30 days past due for short-term 

and long-term, respectively, unless the Bank has reasonable and supportable information that 

demonstrates otherwise. 

 

The Bank has controls and procedures in place to identify when the credit risk of an asset improves 

and the definition of significant increase in credit risk is no longer met. When this is the case, the 

asset may move back to stage 1 from stage 2, subject to payments being up to date and the ability 

of the borrower to make future payments on time. 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.1 Credit risk (continued) 
 

(e) Forward looking information 
 

The Bank analyzes forward-looking information by using the statistical regression model for 

assessment to see whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly to the 

measurement of ECL.  

 

The Bank have identified and documented the key inputs of credit risk and credit losses for each 

portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated 

relationships between macro-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses. 

 

In its ECL models, the Bank relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic 

inputs, such as GDP growth, unemployment rates, inflation (exchange rate) and consumer price 

indices. 

 

The inputs and models used for calculating ECL may not always capture all characteristics of the 

market at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays 

are occasionally made as temporary adjustments when such differences are significantly material. 

 

(f) Measurement of ECL  
 

The key inputs used for measuring ECL include:  
 

• probability of default (PD);  

• exposure at default (EAD); and  

• loss given default (LGD). 

 

These figures are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other 

historical data. 

 

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. It is estimated as at a point 

in time. The calculation is based on statistical rating models, and assessed using rating tools 

tailored to the various categories of counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are 

based on market data (where available), as well as internal data comprising both quantitative and 

qualitative factors. PDs are estimated considering the contractual maturities of exposures and 

estimated prepayment rates. The estimation is based on current conditions, adjusted to take into 

account estimates of future conditions that will impact PD. 

 

EAD represents the gross carrying amount of the financial instruments subject to the impairment 

calculation, addressing both the customer’s ability to increase its exposure while approaching 

default and potential early repayments of principal and interest. The Bank’s modelling approach 

for EAD reflects expected changes in the balance outstanding over the lifetime of the loan 

exposure that are permitted by the current contractual terms, such as amortization profiles, early 

repayment or overpayment, changes in utilization of undrawn commitments and credit mitigation 

actions taken before default. The Bank uses EAD models that reflect the characteristics of the 

portfolios. 

  



ANCO SPECIALIZED BANK LTD. 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 

 41  

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.1 Credit risk (continued) 
 

(f) Measurement of ECL (continued) 
 

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the 

contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account 

cash flows from any collateral. The LGD models for secured assets consider forecasts of future 

collateral valuation taking into account sale discounts, time to realization of collateral, cross-

collateralization and seniority of claim, cost of realization of collateral and cure rates (i.e. exit 

from non-performing status). LGD models for unsecured assets consider time of recovery, 

recovery rates and seniority of claims. The calculation is on a discounted cash flow basis, where 

the cash flows are discounted by the original EIR of the loan. 

 

The Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period 

(including extension options) over which the Bank is exposed to credit risk and not a longer period, 

even if contact extension or renewal is common business practice. 

 

There are differences in methodologies used to measure ECL between ECL calculation for 

accounting purposes and ECL calculation for regulatory purposes, although many key inputs used 

are similar. The Bank have ensured that the appropriate methodology is used when calculating 

ECL for both accounting and regulatory purposes.  

 

The measurement of ECL is based on probability weighted average credit loss. As a result, the 

measurement of the loss allowance should be the same regardless of whether it is measured on an 

individual basis or a collective basis (although measurement on a collective basis is more practical 

for large portfolios of items). In relation to the assessment of whether there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk it can be necessary to perform the assessment on a collective basis as noted 

below. 

 

(g) Concentration of financial assets with credit risk exposures 
 

The analysis of concentrations of credit risk at the reporting date is shown in the following tables 

before taking into account collateral or other credit enhancements. Unless specifically indicated, 

for financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts. 

 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 USD  KHR’000  USD  KHR’000 

Loans to customers        
        

By industry sectors        

Agriculture 271,633  1,106,634  252,925  1,023,082 

Manufacturing 2,926,885  11,924,131  -  - 

Services 342,501  1,395,347  322,555  1,304,735 

Construction 5,873,771  23,929,744  1,090,547  4,411,263 

Wholesale and retail -  -  5,139,076  20,787,562 

Housing 16,693,474  68,009,216  15,173,627  61,377,321 

Others -  -  -  - 
        

 26,108,265  106,365,072  21,978,730  88,903,963 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.1 Credit risk (continued) 
 

(h) Credit quality analysis 
 

The analysis of the Bank’s credit risk exposure, internal rating and “stage” without taking into 

account the effects of any collateral or other credit enhancements is provided in the following 

tables. Unless specifically indicated, for financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross 

carrying amounts. 
 

 31 Dec 2021 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total   KHR’000 

Loans to customers          
          

Performing          

Normal 4,894,894  5,633,158  -  10,528,052  42,891,285 

Special mention 90,328  970,788  -  1,061,116  4,322,989 

Sub-standard 158,262  403,957  1,093,581  1,655,800  6,745,731 

Doubtful -  7,031  3,008,506  3,015,537  12,285,297 
          

Non-performing          

Loss -  -  9,847,759  9,847,759  40,119,770 
          

 5,143,484  7,014,935  13,949,846  26,108,265  106,365,072 
          

Loss allowance (16,410)  (144,458)  (810,070)  (970,938)  (3,955,602) 
          

Carrying amount 5,127,074  6,870,477  13,139,776  25,137,327  102,409,470 

 

 31 Dec 2020 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total   KHR’000 

Loans to customers          
          

Performing          

Normal 1,247,220  10,292,713  -  11,539,933  46,679,030 

Special mention -  437,124  -  437,124  1,768,165 

Sub-standard -  18,915  912,648  931,563  3,768,172 

Doubtful -  -  3,928,303  3,928,303  15,889,985 
          

Non-performing          

Loss -  -  5,141,807  5,141,807  20,798,611 
          

 1,247,220  10,748,752  9,982,758  21,978,730  88,903,963 
          

Loss allowance (5,575)  (143,772)  (520,488)  (669,835)  (2,709,481) 
          

Carrying amount 1,241,645  10,604,979  9,462,271  21,308,895  86,194,482 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.1 Credit risk (continued) 
 

(h) Credit quality analysis (continued) 
 

Analysis by loss allowance - Loans to customers 
 

 31 Dec 2021 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total   KHR’000 
          

Loss allowance as at 1 Jan 2021 5,575  143,772  520,488  669,836  2,709,481 

          

Change in loss allowance          

- Transfer to 12-month ECL -  15,327  26,929  42,256  171,897 

- Transfer to not credit-impaired financial assets -  71,172  243,031  314,203  1,278,179 

- Transfer to lifetime ECL 6  (17)  415,706  415,696  1,691,050 

New financial assets originated or purchased 16,404  57,975  124,406  198,784  808,654 

Financial assets derecognized during the period 973  27,510  79,500  107,983  439,276 

Other movements (6,549)  (171,282)  (599,988)  (777,819)  (3,164,168) 

Currency translation difference -  -  -  -  21,238 
          

Loss allowance as at 31 Dec 2021 16,410  144,457  810,072  970,939  3,955,607 

 

 31 Dec 2020 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total   KHR’000 
          

Loss allowance as at 1 Jan 2020 40,990  211,454  407,985  660,429  2,691,248 
          

Change in loss allowance          

- Transfer to 12-month ECL 1,012  46,481  239,954  287,447  1,172,783 

- Transfer to not credit-impaired financial assets 104  37,165  211,235  248,504  1,013,898 

- Transfer to lifetime ECL 176  (381)  7,733  7,528  30,716 

New financial assets originated or purchased 4,283  60,507  61,566  126,356  515,531 

Financial assets derecognized during the period (9,333)  (33,157)  (82,364)  (124,854)  (509,405) 

Other movements (31,657)  (178,297)  (325,621)  (535,575)  (2,185,146) 

Currency translation difference -  -  -  -  (20,144) 
          

Loss allowance as at 31 Dec 2020 5,575  143,772  520,488  669,835  2,709,481 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.1 Credit risk (continued) 
 

(h) Credit quality analysis (continued) 
 

More information about the significant changes in the gross carrying amount of financial assets 

during the period that contributed to changes in the loss allowance is provided at the table below. 

 

Analysis by gross carrying amount - Loans to customers 
 

 31 Dec 2021 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total   KHR’000 
          

Gross carrying amount as at 1 Jan 2021 1,247,220  10,748,752  9,982,758  21,978,730  88,903,963 
          

Change in gross carrying amount          

- Transfer to 12-month ECL -  645,672  269,292  914,964  3,722,074 

- Transfer to not credit-impaired financial assets -  5,226,229  2,430,309  7,656,538  31,146,797 

- Transfer to lifetime ECL 2,098  44,803  10,006,187  10,053,088  40,895,961 

New financial assets originated or purchased 5,141,386  1,098,231  1,244,058  7,483,675  30,443,589 

Financial assets derecognized during the period 200,671  1,865,274  686,154  2,752,099  11,195,537 

Other movements (1,447,891)  (12,614,025)  (10,668,913)  (24,730,828)  (100,605,009) 

Currency translation difference -  -  -  -  662,160 
          

Gross carrying amount as at 31 Dec 2021 5,143,484  7,014,935  13,949,846  26,108,265  106,365,072 

 
 31 Dec 2020 

 Stage 1  Stage 2  Stage 3  Total   KHR’000 
          

Gross carrying amount as at 1 Jan 2020 8,596,446  5,634,591  5,405,060  19,636,097  80,017,095 
          

Change in gross carrying amount          

- Transfer to 12-month ECL 224,202  3,214,814  2,399,542  5,838,558  23,821,318 

- Transfer to not credit-impaired financial assets 24,172  1,993,511  2,112,350  4,130,033  16,850,536 

- Transfer to lifetime ECL 30,575  352,486  4,855,211  5,238,272  21,372,148 

New financial assets originated or purchased 968,271  5,187,942  615,655  6,771,868  27,629,222 

Financial assets derecognized during the period (1,824,176)  (1,258,614)  (612,914)  (3,695,704)  (15,078,474) 

Other movements (6,772,270)  (4,375,978)  (4,792,146)  (15,940,394)  (65,036,809) 

Currency translation difference -  -  -  -  (671,073) 
          

Gross carrying amount as at 31 Dec 2020 1,247,220  10,748,752  9,982,758  21,978,730  88,903,963 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.1 Credit risk (continued) 
 

(h) Credit quality analysis (continued) 
 

The Bank’s monitoring procedures before the exposure has defaulted presumes that the credit risk 

on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when exposure becomes 

more than 15 days and 30 days past due for short-term and long-term financial asset, respectively. 

The table below provides an analysis of the gross carrying amount of loans to customers by past 

due status. 

 

 31 Dec 2021  31 Dec 2020 

 

Gross 

carrying 

amount  ECL  

Gross 

carrying 

amount  ECL 

Loans to customers        
        

Days past due        

0-29 days 11,217,532  (85,687)  11,577,110  (110,876) 

30-89 days 940,887  (77,086)  418,862  (42,845) 

90-179 days 1,146,551  (114,655)  946,624  (94,662) 

180-360 days 2,986,598  (194,002)  3,899,442  (40,302) 

More than 360 days 9,816,697  (499,508)  5,136,692  (381,150) 
        

 26,108,265  (970,938)  21,978,730  (669,835) 

 

(i) Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements 
 

The amount and type of collaterals required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the 

counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of 

collaterals. Credit department monitors the market value of collaterals and will request additional 

collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement. 

 

The Bank hold residential properties as collaterals for majority of loans, and the collaterals include 

land, house, building and other movable assets. The Bank’s policy is to provide loan up to 70% of 

the collateral value. There was no change in the Bank’s collateral policy during the year. 

 
26.2 Market risk 
 

The Bank takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash 

flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk 

arises from open positions in interest rates, currency and equity products, all of which are exposed 

to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or 

prices such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. 

 

(a) Market risk management 
 

Market risk is primarily managed by the Bank’s credit department, which is responsible for 

ensuring that the Bank’s exposures are in compliance with market risk limits approved by the 

Directors and to take adequate actions when necessary.  
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.2 Market risk (continued) 
 

(a) Market risk management (continued) 
 

Market risk limits are set and continuously reviewed by the credit department. As a part of their 

established market risk management process, the credit department also monitors early signs of 

possible changes in market conditions such as: anticipated and actual changes to interest rates, 

socio-economic factors driving customer prepayment behaviors and economic factors driving 

currency price movements.  

 

The Bank’s exposure to market risk pertains to non-trading portfolios. 

 

(b) Foreign exchange risk 
 

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in 

foreign exchange rates.  

 

The Bank has no material exposures to currency risk as it transacts essentially in US Dollar. 

Therefore, there is no currency exposures and no analysis for foreign exchange risk was presented. 

 

(c) Price risk 
 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of securities or equities decreases as the result of changes 

in the level of equity indices and individual stocks. 

 

The Bank is not exposed to securities price risk because it does not hold any investment held and 

classified on the financial statements either as available for sale or at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

(d) Interest rate risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of 

a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. Interest 

margins may increase as a result of changes but may reduce losses in the event that unexpected 

movements arise. The management at this stage does not have a policy to set limits on the level 

of mismatch of interest rate re-pricing that may be undertaken, however, the management 

regularly monitors the mismatch. 

 

The Bank are exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches of interest rate re-pricing of 

assets and liabilities. The Bank manage this risk by matching the re-pricing of assets and liabilities 

through risk management strategies.  

 

The Bank have no significant financial assets and liabilities with floating interest rates. Balances 

with the NBC and with banks earn fixed interest for the period of the deposits and placements, 

and loans to customers earn fixed interest based on outstanding balances over the agreed term. 

 

The table below summarizes the Bank’s exposure to interest rate gap position on non-trading 

portfolios. The interest rate re-pricing gap table analyses the full-term structure of interest rate 

mismatches within the Bank’s statement of financial position based on the maturity date. 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.2 Market risk (continued) 
 

(d) Interest rate risk (continued) 
 

As at 31 December 2021 

 Up to 1 month  1-3 months  3-12 months  1 to 5 years  

Over 5 

years  

Non-interest 

bearing  Total 

 USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD 

Financial assets              

Cash in hand -  -  -  -  -  1,819,462  1,819,462 

Balances with the NBC -  -  -  -  -  9,925,323  9,925,323 

Balances with other banks -  -  -  -    3,453,018  3,453,018 

Loans to customers – gross 3,837,047  249,551  815,845  13,034,466  8,171,357  -  26,108,265 

Other assets -  -  -  -  -  108,707  108,707 
              

Total financial assets 3,837,047  249,551  815,845  13,034,466  8,171,357  15,306,510  41,414,775 

              

Financial liabilities              

Lease liabilities -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other liabilities -  -  -  -  -  329,126  329,126 
              

Total financial liabilities -  -  -  -  -  329,126  329,126 
              

Interest re-pricing gap 2021 3,837,047  249,551  815,845  13,034,466  8,171,357  14,977,384  41,085,649 
              

KHR’000 equivalents 15,632,130  1,016,670  3,323,751  53,102,413  33,290,107  61,017,862  167,382,933 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.2 Market risk (continued) 
  

(d) Interest rate risk (continued) 
 

As at 31 December 2020 

 Up to 1 month  1-3 months  3-12 months  1 to 5 years  

Over 5 

years  

Non-interest 

bearing  Total 

 USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD 

Financial assets              

Cash in hand -  -  -  -  -  1,401,038  1,401,038 

Balances with the NBC -  -  -  -  -  4,724,948  4,724,948 

Balances with other banks -  -  -  -    1,435,420  1,435,420 

Loans to customers – gross 2,411,923  630,701  829,408  10,489,845  7,616,853  -  21,978,730 

Other assets -  -  -  -  -  109,493  109,493 
              

Total financial assets 2,411,923  630,701  829,408  10,489,845  7,616,853  7,670,899  29,649,629 

              

Financial liabilities              

Lease liabilities -  -  -  -  -  28,571  28,571 

Other liabilities -  -  -  -  -  186,026  186,026 
              

Total financial liabilities -  -  -  -  -  214,597  214,597 
              

Interest re-pricing gap 2020 2,411,923  630,701  829,408  10,489,845  7,616,853  7,456,302  29,435,032 
              

KHR’000 equivalents 9,756,229  2,551,186  3,354,955  42,431,423  30,810,170  30,160,742  119,064,704 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.3 Liquidity risk 
 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its payment obligations associated with 

its financial liabilities when they fall due and to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The 

consequence may be the failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfil commitments to 

lend. 

 

The management monitors statement of financial position liquidity and manages the concentration 

and profile of debt maturities. Monitoring and reporting take the form of the daily cash position 

and projection for the next day, week and month, respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity 

management. The Bank does not have external borrowings. The Bank’s operations rely on the 

contribution of capital from shareholders.  

 

The Bank’s main sources of liquidities arise from shareholder’s paid-up capital. The sources of 

liquidity are regularly reviewed in the Board of Directors’ meeting through management’s review 

of lending limits where appropriate. 

 

The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Bank into 

relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining periods to the contractual or estimated 

maturity at the statement of financial position date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the 

contractual undiscounted cash flows.  
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.3 Liquidity risk (continued) 
 

As at 31 December 2021 

 Up to 1 month  1-3 months  3-12 months  1 to 5 years  Over 5 years  

No maturity 

date   Total 

 USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD 

Financial assets              

Cash in hand 1,819,462  -  -  -  -  -  1,819,462 

Balances with the NBC 9,925,323  -  -  -  -  -  9,925,323 

Balances with other banks 3,453,018  -  -  -  -  -  3,453,018 

Loans to customers  2,280,559  180,165  683,953  17,891,885  14,419,646  -  35,456,208 

Other assets -  -  -  -  -  108,707  108,707 
              

Total financial assets 17,478,362  180,165  683,953  17,891,885  14,419,646  108,707  50,762,718 
              

Financial liabilities              

Lease liabilities -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Other liabilities 174,011  -  -  -  -  155,115  329,126 
              

Total financial liabilities 174,011  -  -  -  -  155,115  329,126 
              

Net liquidity gap - USD 17,304,351  180,165  683,953  17,891,885  14,419,646  (46,408)  50,433,592 
              

KHR’000 equivalents 70,497,926  733,991  2,786,424  72,891,539  58,745,639  (189,066)  205,466,455 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.3 Liquidity risk (continued) 
 

As at 31 December 2020 

 Up to 1 month  1-3 months  3-12 months  1 to 5 years  Over 5 years  

No maturity 

date   Total 

 USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD  USD 

Financial assets              

Cash in hand 1,401,038  -  -  -  -  -  1,401,038 

Balances with the NBC 4,724,948  -  -  -  -  -  4,724,948 

Balances with other banks 1,435,420  -  -  -  -  -  1,435,420 

Loans to customers - gross 1,765,888  854,872  2,595,992  17,578,124  9,317,165  -  32,112,041 

Other assets -  -  -  -  -  109,493  109,493 
              

Total financial assets 9,327,294  854,872  2,595,992  17,578,124  9,317,165  109,493  39,782,940 
              

Financial liabilities              

Lease liabilities -  -  -  28,571  -  -  28,571 

Other liabilities 170,797  -  -  -  -  15,229  186,026 
              

Total financial liabilities 170,797  -  -  28,571  -  15,229  214,597 
              

Net liquidity gap - USD 9,156,497  854,872  2,595,992  17,549,553  9,317,165  94,264  39,568,343 
              

KHR’000 equivalents 37,038,030  3,457,957  10,500,788  70,987,942  37,687,932  381,298  160,053,947 
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 

26.4 Capital management 
 

The Bank considers the need to balance efficiency, flexibility and adequacy when determining 

sufficiency of capital. The Bank details these considerations through an internal capital adequacy 

assessment process which include: 

 

(a) consideration of regulatory minimum capital requirements set by the NBC;  

(b) safeguarding the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to 

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and  

(c) maintaining a strong capital base to support the development of business.  

 

The NBC, as a regulator, sets and monitors capital requirements for all banks. The Directors ensure 

that the Bank have complied with all imposed capital requirements.  

 

26.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
 

Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current 

transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation. 

 

Since market prices for the major part of Bank’s financial assets and liabilities are not available, 

the fair value of these items is based on the estimates of the management according to the type of 

assets and liabilities. According to the estimation of the management, the fair value of financial 

assets and liabilities of the Bank is not materially different from the carrying amounts of all 

categories of assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position. 

 

27. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS ADOPTED BY THE BANK  
 

A number of new and amended IFRS standards became effective for the periods beginning on or 

after 1 January 2020 and were adopted by the Bank in the current reporting period. Adoption of 

these standards does not have any material impact on the Bank’s financial statements.  

 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 

4 and IFRS 16 

 

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an 

interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR). 

 

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Bank. The Bank intends to 

use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable. 

 

28. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS NOT YET ADOPTED 

 

Certain new and amended standards have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 

2021 reporting periods and earlier application is permitted; however, the Bank has not early 

adopted the new or amended standards in preparing the financial statements. The Management of 

the Bank anticipates that the application of these standards are not expected to have a material 

impact on the Bank’s financial statements. 
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29. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD  
 

The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic has severely impacted businesses in Cambodia and 

elsewhere. The Directors have assessed the impact on the financial statements of the Bank and 

concluded that there is a minimal impact to the Bank’s financial statements given the size of the 

related portfolios at the year-end; however, management is unable to fully assess the exposure as 

of the reporting date. There is still significant uncertainty over how the outbreak will impact the 

financial position and results of the Bank for future periods. Directors consider that the main 

impact arising from Covid-19 outbreak is long term and that the Bank’s activities may be slow in 

this period which impacts the current profitability level and liquidity headroom, but would not 

lead to a going concern issue given the size of the operations. 

 

The Bank has evaluated events after the end of the reporting period until the date the financial 

statements were available for issue. The Directors affirm that no other material events should be 

reported to be adjusting or non-adjusting events. 

 

 




